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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Strategic report

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their strategic report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
Principal activities

The principal activities of the company are to develop and deliver electrical products, lighting controls and integrated
solutions to improve energy efficiency, industrial productivity and safety while enhancing convenience and control.
The company operates throughout the UK, mainland Europe and the Middle East. The company has a branch in
Ireland.

Review of the business and future developments

The loss for the financial year, after taxation, is £8,305,000 (2019: profit of £7,593,000).

Turnover for the year was £81,098,000 (2019: £108,924,000) which is a drop of 25.5% when compared to the prior
year. This is primarily due to exiting from the circuit protection business, the challenging market in the UK for
electrical products and overall economic uncertainty stemming from the impact of COVID-19 leading to lower
demand. Gross margins for the year had an adverse impact due to the drop in volume along with relatively static
fixed cost base and inflationary cost pressures, resultingly the company recognised a loss in 2020.

The business continues to focus on cost controls and manufacturing efficiencies to offset the inflationary pressures.
There was a reduction in the staff resources as a result of the cost saving initiatives. Moreover, the business is
investing heavily into research and development projects to improve the market share in 2021 and invested in a
new distribution centre at Ellesmere Port. In addition, the company received £330,000 from the UK Government’s
Job Retention Scheme.

In spite of the loss for the year net assets increased by £23,937,000, primarily due to the increase in the pension
asset which was attributable to the actuarial gains on pension assets exceeding the actuarial losses on the liabilities
leading to a net gain of £41,496,000 (2019: net loss of £3,941,000) being recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement (Brexit deal) was signed on 30 December 2020 and is effective
from midnight on 31 December 2020. The company’s trading activity with the EU is not significant to the overall
activity and as a result the Brexit deal is not expected to have a significant impact on the future activities of the
company. However, it will affect the principal risks and uncertainties as detailed in the risk management, and
principal risks and uncertainties paragraphs included in this report.

The company is in a net asset position and expects to remain so for the foreseeable future.

Key performance indicators

Management monitors the business using the following key indicators:

2020 2019
Turnover % change compared with previous year (25.5) (7.1)
Gross profit margin % 234 31.7
Operating (loss)/profit margin % of turnover (8.1) 6.2

Turnover

Turnover from continuing operations has dropped by 25.5% to £81,098,000 (2019: £108,924,000). This is primarily
due to the challenging market in the UK for electrical products and overall economic uncertainty due to the impact
of COVID-19 leading a lower demand.

Gross profit margin

Gross profit was negatively impacted mainly due to the relatively static fixed cost base with decreasing volumes in
the year, particularly due to the market conditions in the UK and Middle East. The company continues to focus on
maintaining margins through stringent cost controls.

Operating (loss)/profit margin

Operating margins in the year were impacted mainly by investments in research and development projects of
£5,566,000 (2019: £4,097,000), redundancy costs due to the closure of the St. Asaph site of £2,961,000 (2019:
£1,720,000), adverse FX impact and other impacts as discussed above under gross profit.
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Strategy

The company maintains market share and sustainable growth through the following strategies:

providing the highest standard of product service and delivery to its customer at a competitive cost;
productivity and process improvement;

product development;

continued expansion into current and new markets;

proactive alignment of its business structure to meet changing market demands;

defending and extending the installed base through productivity improvements; and

strong brand recognition through brand and channel management.

Financial risk management, objectives and policies
Interest risks

The company is exposed to interest rate risk arising out of amounts owed by group undertakings. The exposures
to interest rate risks have not been hedged as there is no net interest rate risk at group level on account of intra
group loan balances.

Foreign currency risks

The impact of COVID-19 has resulted in increased volatility in foreign exchange rates thus exposing the company
to increased foreign currency risks. This has been compounded by the effect of the Brexit deal on British Pound
Sterling.

The company monitors and manages the foreign currency risk relating to the operations of the company; with the
assistance of the treasury department of Honeywell International Inc.

Liquidity risks

The company ensures availability of funding for its operations through an appropriate amount of committed bank
facilities on a group wide basis.

Credit risks

Credit risk arises from exposures to customers. The creditworthiness of customers granted credit terms in the
normal course of business is monitored continually.

The terms and conditions of credit sales are designed to mitigate or eliminate concentrations of credit risk with any
single customer. Sales are not materially dependent on a single customer or a small group of customers.

In respect of intercompany receivables, the company does not have exposure to credit risk considering that we are
receiving a guarantee letter from Honeywell International Inc. to support intercompany balances.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As a trading company, the company is dependent on its continued ability to secure contracts with customers and
its ability to perform under those contracts.

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (*“COVID-19") was identified in Asia. Over the next several months,
‘COVID-19 quickly spread across the world. In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a
worldwide pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency
measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of travel bans,
self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material disruption to businesses globally
resulting in an economic slowdown which could negatively impact the company’s operations and adversely affect
its business. As of December 31, 2020, the virus continues to spread, and many countries are experiencing a
resurgence in infection rates. Although vaccines have recently been made available, the availability and distribution
of the vaccines continues to provide challenges. We remain cautious as many factors remain unpredictable,
including the increasing rate of COVID-19 infections. We continue to monitor COVID-19 infection rates and
acknowledge the risk of new surges in COVID-19 infections.
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The global spread of COVID-19 creates significant volatility, uncertainty and economic disruption, which impacts
our business, operations and financial results and may continue to do so. Honeywell’s capabilities adapted towards
addressing the COVID-19 challenges of our customers around the world. The enduring impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on business, operations and financial results will depend on numerous evolving factors that we may not
be able to accurately predict, including: the duration, scope and severity of the pandemic; as well as the timing and
availability of effective medical treatments and vaccines; governmental, business and individual decisions and
actions; the impact of the pandemic on economic activity; and the extent to which we or our business partners may
be prevented from conducting normal business activities due to shutdowns or other restrictive measures that may
be requested or mandated by governmental authorities.

These factors could, among other things, disrupt the purchasing and payment behaviours of our customers and
their end-users; our operations, including our manufacturing activities, the shipment of our products, and the
performance of our suppliers and service providers; and our liquidity and cash flow.

The following risks will be applicable to the companies dealing in Honeywell building technologies business as a
whole:

e Customerrisk: Existing and potential customers and their end-users may choose to reduce or delay spending,
cancel contracts, or cut costs in a manner that reduces demand for our products and services. Customers
may also attempt to renegotiate contracts and obtain concessions, face financial constraints on their ability to
make payments to us on a timely basis or at all, or discontinue their business operations, and we may be
required to discount the pricing of our products, all of which may materially and negatively impact our
operating results, financial condition and prospects. In addition, unfavourable customer site conditions, such
as closure of or access restrictions to customer facilities, and disruptions to our customers’ third-party
logistics, warehousing, inventory management and distribution services may limit our ability to sell products
and provide services, meet billing milestones or provide services.

e Operations risk: The closure of our facilities, restrictions inhibiting our employees’ ability to access those
facilities, and disruptions to the ability of our suppliers or service providers to deliver goods or services to us
(including as a result of supplier facility closures or access restrictions, disruptions to their supply chains, and
supplier liquidity or bankruptcy risk) could disrupt our ability to provide our services and solutions and result
in, among other things, terminations of customer contracts and losses of revenue. Because the COVID-19
pandemic could adversely affect our near-term and long-term revenues, earnings, liquidity and cash flows,
we have taken and may be required to continue taking significant cost actions, including but not limited to
reducing discretionary expenses (such as non-essential travel, contractors, and consultants), reducing hiring,
cancelling annual merit increases; reducing executive and board of directors pay, reducing work schedules
across the enterprise, shortening or staggering work schedules to match production with demand, and
reducing staffing levels, as well as increasing supplier-based productivity and enhancing spending-limit
controls. Remote work and increased frequency of cybersecurity attacks, including phishing and malware
attempts that utilize COVID-19-related strategies, increase the risk of a material cybersecurity incident that
could result in the loss of proprietary or personal data, render us more vulnerable to future cybersecurity
attacks, disrupt our operations, or otherwise cause us reputational or financial harm.

The company develops and deliver electrical products, lighting controls and integrated solutions to improve energy
efficiency, industrial productivity and safety while enhancing convenience and control to entities outside the
Honeywell group. The current coronavirus pandemic has a material adverse impact on the demand for company’s
products mainly due to supply chain headwinds, customer site disruptions and lockdown restrictions. The company
is undertaking various cost mitigating measures as described above to reduce its current cost base. The company
expects gradual recovery in demand for its products and services once the lockdown measures are lifted. The
company is investing heavily into research and development projects to improve its market share in 2021.

With the introduction of a vaccine, the COVID-19 pandemic is being brought under control however there is
potential for new strains of the virus resulting in reduced efficacy and continuation of government-imposed
restrictions to business activities. A sustained or prolonged COVID-19 outbreak could exacerbate the negative
impacts described above, and the resumption of normal business operations may be delayed or constrained by
lingering effects on our suppliers, third-party service providers, and/or customers. These effects, alone or taken
together, could further impact each of the risks described above. Due to daily evolution of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the responses to curb its spread, we cannot predict the ultimate impact the COVID-18 pandemic will have on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and cash flow.
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On 23 June 2016, the UK held a referendum on the UK's continuing membership of the EU, the outcome of which
was a decision for the UK to leave the EU (Brexit). The UK left the EU on 31 January 2020 and was in a transition
period until 31 December 2020. The EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement (Brexit deal) was signed on 30
December 2020 and is effective from 1 January 2021. The deal imposes additional rules and regulations to govern
the transfer of goods and services between the United Kingdom and European Union. This is likely to lead to an
increase in costs and administrative requirements of trading with the European Union. The implementation of the
deal is also expected to impact macroeconomic factors such as exchange rates. A working group has been
established by Honeywell International Inc. to monitor the trade deal and regulation and implement mitigating
actions to respond to any changes.

The company’s trading activity with the EU is not significant to the overall activity. As a result, the effect of the
Brexit deal is limited to macroeconomic factors, such as exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations, that are
influenced by the deal and affect the environment in which the company operates.

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) of
Companies Act 2006

Set out below is the Company’s report as required under the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018 (the “Regulations”). The Regulations require Novar ED&S Limited (the “Company”) to report how the
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) have considered their duties under section 172 (“Section 172”) of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholder whilst
having due regard to the Company’s stakeholders. The principal activity of the Company is to develop and deliver
electrical products, lighting controls and integrated solutions to improve energy efficiency, industrial productivity
and safety while enhancing convenience and control. '

The Company is part of the Honeywell group of companies (the “Honeywell Group”) and is ultimately owned by
Honeywell International Inc. The duty under Section 172 is owed by the Directors to the Company. In the context
of a group of companies, the Company’s Directors owe their primary duty to the Company and not Honeywell
International Inc (though Honeywell International Inc is considered a relevant factor under the Section 172 duty).

The Board recognises the need to have appropriate levels of corporate governance as part of its approach to risk
mitigation and wider stakeholder engagement strategy, and that the overall framework that Section 172 promotes
is to drive the long-term success and sustained economic viability of the Company for the benefit of its sole
shareholder and other key stakeholders.

The Directors are mindful of corporate governance and seek to demonstrate understanding of their accountability
and statutory responsibilities, including application of their Section 172 duties under the Act. Honeywell Group’s
legal function provides regular corporate governance updates to the Board on new and amended legislation,
including the steps taken to ensure compliance. The Directors always consider whether the decisions to be taken
are in the best interest of the Company, whilst also considering the impact on the Company’s wider stakeholder
base.

For details of the issues, factors and stakeholders the Directors consider relevant in complying with Section 172 of
the Act, and the main methods the Directors have used to engage with stakeholders and understand the issues to
which they must have regard, refer to the Engagement with Employees Statement and Engagement with Suppliers,
Customers and Others Statement on pages 7 and 10.

Purpose

The Board is responsible for developing and promoting the purpose of the Company and ensuring that its values,
strategy and culture complement this purpose and are strategically aligned with Honeywell Group’s strategy. Our
purpose is at the heart of everything that we do, it inspires our employees and guides our day-to-day operations,
our culture and decision making by the Board. The Company develops and delivers electrical products, lighting
controls and integrated solutions to improve energy efficiency, industrial productivity and safety while enhancing
convenience and control.

An annual strategic planning process at Novar ED&S Limited takes place that guides the direction of our business.
Our strategic objectives align to the wider Honeywell strategy and taking into account new products planned at the
Company.
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We align our values with the wider Honeywell Group’s clearly defined core values, which encompass inclusion and
diversity, sustainability, integrity and compliance and communities. By incorporating these values, we create an
environment where individuals and teams grow together whilst recognizing a culture that balances accountability
and results with a high value on its people. The Company’s commitment to integrity, ethics, supporting diversity
and workplace respect underlie the Directors’ duties to promote the success of the Company as a whole whilst
encouraging such behaviours enabling a “performance culture” that the Honeywell Group seeks to achieve
throughout. Our people are passionate about our Company brand and the future success of the business.

Our culture is determined by the values set out above which defines the expectations, attitudes and behaviors
expected by the Company’s Directors and its employees, in its activities and relationships with colleagues,
shareholders and wider stakeholders. In doing so, this ensures that the business maintains a reputation for high
standards of business conduct and stakeholder engagement.

Our culture and values are further reinforced by training and development of the Board and employees. The
Company and its Directors are able to apply the core values, which produce a high standard of business ethics,
when considering the statutory requirements of Section 172 in pursuit of promoting the long-term success of the
Company.

In making its decisions, including strategic decisions that impact our stakeholders, a key principle applied by the
Directors is to always consider whether the decision they are about to take leads to a positive long-term increase
in shareholder value whilst balancing the interests of, and long-term impacts on, stakeholders. The Directors and
senior management are provided with clear guidance and appropriate corporate governance protocols to support
the decision-making process, at the heart of which is the necessity to promote the sustainable, long-term success
of the Company, whilst having sufficient regard for stakeholders.

Decision Making Process

Decision making within the Company is undertaken by the Board with supporting information from subject matter
experts at executive level in the business, including various Honeywell group functions such as Tax, Treasury and
Legal. When making large decisions, there are cross-functional meetings and which cover other global territories
as appropriate.

The Board has a robust set of reserved matters relevant and appropriate to its purpose and function, with
appropriate thresholds, to ensure applicable approvals are obtained before certain actions/business decisions can
be taken. Certain matters are delegated to senior management and Honeywell International Inc (in its capacity as
ultimate shareholder). Board matters are strictly reserved to ensure the directors of the Board can demonstrate
sound and competent execution of their statutory duties (including oversight of the management of relationships
and engagement with stakeholders on their behalf) in accordance with the Act and the Regulations and are driven
by the need to promote the success of the Company. A key principle underlying these delegations in the Company
is that the flow of delegation originates from the Board to senior management.

As detailed in the Training section below, training has been undertaken by Directors and senior management to
understand the requirements of the Regulations and the process for approving principal decisions. This training
also informed the directors of future regulatory developments which the Board will continue to monitor through the
overarching corporate governance across the UK.

Board meetings are scheduled on an adhoc basis and occur at least once a year. The Board processes that support
the application of our corporate governance and decision-making more widely, and Section 172 more specifically,
require board paper preparers to ensure sufficient and relevant information is provided to the Board, senior
management and/or Honeywell International Inc. Board meetings and minutes demonstrate the relevant aspects
of Section 172 are considered and appropriately addressed. The corporate governance process provides the
Company with a framework to ensure everyone involved in and contributing to the decision-making process
understands the duties which the directors are obligated to consider in the decision-making process and applicable
regulations, to be able to provide relevant information and therefore lead to effective decision making.

To further support effective decision-making, Board and senior management take into account various group-wide
governance policies and practices, inciuding the Delegations of Authority, Code of Ethics, Anti-Bribery and
Corruption Policy, Environmental Policy, Security Policy (the "Honeywell Policies”), when making decisions on
behalf of the Company, together with established practices.
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Board composition

The Company has two Directors, as further described on page 13 of the Directors’ Report. The current Directors,
in addition to their role as statutory Director of the Company, also occupy key positions within the wider organisation
and ensure ongoing oversight of various segments of the business]. For example, M.Orbell-Thompson is the
finance leader on key leadership teams for various EMEA Honeywell lines of business. She has extensive
experience in designing, preparing and presenting EMEA financial results and analysis to the key leadership teams,
highlighting risks and opportunities, to enable profitable growth. She is also responsible for driving business and
finance functional objectives and ensuring proper internal controls.

The composition of the Board provides a level of seniority, extensive business and industry experience and in-
depth understanding of the Company’s and the wider organization’s affairs to enable the Directors to meet the
needs of the business and for the Directors to each carry out their role and statutory duties to a high standard. The
Board's collective experience enables them to identify and consider a broad range of stakeholders in their
deliberations and decision-making.

During, and after the end of, the reporting period, changes were made to the Board's composition to strengthen
and align legal entity and executive governance. During the year, N.E.Garland and |.Snadden resigned from the
Company and N.Dix was appointed as Director. The decision to appoint N.Dix was taken with a view to promote
the long-term success of the Company given her deep understanding of the electricals business and the Honeywell
Group.

Training

New Directors are subject to a formal induction process and the current Directors have an opportunity to receive
training relevant to their role on the Board and the wider organisation. To support the Directors in their roles and
enable them to discharge their responsibilities as statutory directors, the induction and ongoing training contains
materials and training sessions on Section 172 duties and wider responsibilities of the Directors.

The Directors of the Company are given access to an online training portal where regularly updated training material
and modules are made available to enable the Directors to continually refresh and develop their skills and
knowledge. Sector specific training is provided to all employees along with the Directors.

In 2021, and annually going forwards, Directors of the Company will attend bespoke training sessions from an
external facilitator to ensure they are continually up to date with relevant legislation in order to actively demonstrate
compliance and application of their statutory duties. Director training will consist of presentations, breakout
sessions and case study analysis. New Directors will be provided with induction packs detailing the course content
to ensure that they are up to date as soon as they take on a Honeywell directorship.

Principal decisions

Being a part of a large muitinational group of companies, the Company adheres to the compliance policies and
procedures which are set out by its parent company, Honeywell International Inc, alongside those of the wider
group. During the year, all key strategic decisions made by the Company have been made with due consideration
of the business unit and wider Honeywell Group strategy.

The Board have the necessary skills and experience required to identify the impacts of their decisions on the
Company’s stakeholders, and where relevant, the likely consequences of the decisions in the long-term. The
Directors are supported by information provided by Honeywell Group functions, such as Tax, Treasury and Legal
- who support and consult when necessary. Responsibility for making principal decisions is reserved for the
Company's Board and can include the following decisions: (i) those linked to matters of strategic importance; (ii)
commercially material matters of financial or operational importance; and (iii) those that impact key stakeholders.
Examples of principal decisions can include:

dividends;

changes to key investments owned by the Company;
substantial reorganisation projects;

business contracts above certain value,

changes to the Company’s strategic objectives;

substantial changes to the Honeywell brand; and

matters that will substantially affect the Company’s employees.
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In making its decisions, the Board is required to consider the outcome of any stakeholder impact assessment that
has been undertaken to support it making that principal decision.

In line with the Regulations and FRC guidance, and in accordance with the approach taken during the financial
year under review, having considered the Company’s principal risks and uncertainties as detailed in the Strategic
Report, the Company made the following principal decisions during the year ended 31 December 2020:

- Approving the appointment of N.Dix as Branch Representative of the irish Branch and resignation of
N.Hunt as Branch Representative.

- Approval of Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2019.

- Actions taken to mitigate the supply chain disruption experienced in the year.

These decisions benefitted the long-term development of the Company. In making its decisions, the Board is
required to consider the outcome of any stakeholder impact assessment that has been undertaken to support it
making that principal decision.

Covid-19 Related Decisions:

The Honeywell Group undertook a formal analysis, “Going Concern and Impact of Covid 19, of the impact of Covid
19 on global and local economies and the effect on Honeyweil’s UK holding and financial companies, as well as
Honeywell International Inc. The report contained an analysis of the impacts of the global pandemic on areas such
as employee health, safety, economic wellness, Honeywell’s commitment to public health, plant productivity and
safety, customers and suppliers, liquidity resources and prudent cost control measures.

The Company experienced reduced customer demand due to the difficulties of product installation resulting from
social distancing rules. There was also disruption in the supply chain partly attributed to the pandemic. Despite this
no immediate longer term negative implications were highlighted.

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with the Company
Statement (Stakeholders):

The Board recognises the importance of considering and having regard to key stakeholders and their interests when
making decisions. By thoroughly understanding the Company's key stakeholder groups, the Board can successfully
factor in and address the needs of these stakeholders and foster good business relationships with them. The
Company considers its employees, suppliers, customers, the community and environment, its sole shareholder and
regulators to be its key stakeholders.

We aim to build and maintain lasting relationships with its key stakeholders in the countries where it operates. The
Company engages with its key stakeholders and considers their differing needs and priorities as an everyday part
of its business and uses the input and feedback to inform its decision-making.

The Board delegates stakeholder engagement to the senior management and considers the stakeholders that are
impacted by the Company and its business activities, including its employees, suppliers, customers, the local
community and the shareholder.

The Company’s Board operates within the Honeywell Group’s vision which recognises the importance of clear and
effective communication as well as proactive engagement with stakeholders. By enabling a broad range of
engagement channels, informed decision-making is achieved and supports the long-term success of the Company.

Regularly engaging with the key stakeholders is a priority for the Company and the following information describes
how the Directors had regard to the need to foster relationships with the Company’s key stakeholders, how
outcomes were considered and how concerns were identified and addressed during the reporting period. Further
detail of these decisions, and in particular the Principal Decisions in relation to the stakeholders, are discussed in
the s172 Statement on page 12:
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Key
stakeholders

Stakeholders’ interests

How we have fostered
relationships

How the
relationships
decision making

fostering of
impacted

customers with top quality
services.

To -demonstrate excellence
in service delivery on a
global scale and build trust
between customers and the
Company.

Ensuring safety of the
products and  services
provided to customers.

Ensuring that any claims in
relation to quality of safety of

number of group-wide policies
aimed at ensuring ongoing
security of customer data,
high standards of safety and
quality of the products and
services  and continued
confidence and trust of our
customers.

Employees For details on how we engaged with Novar ED&S Limited’'s UK-based employees, how the
Directors had regard to those employees’ interests, and the effect of that regard, including on
the decisions taken during the reporting period, refer to the Engagement with Employees
Statement in the Directors’ report (details of which are set out on page 13).

Suppliers To receive a clearly stated | The Company maintains a | Any noted issues on suppliers
set of requirements to | number of group-wide policies | are appropriately escalated
understand ~ Novar EDA&S | to ensure fair and respectful | via the procurement function.
Limited’s needs and | treatment of its actual and
expectations. potential suppliers across the

. organisation. The policies
.To receive regular support | clearly set out the Company’s
from Novar ED&S Limited to | expectations in relation to the
improve suppliers’ business | quality of supplier products
management system and-| and services delivered and
effectively avoid any defects | requirements that need to be
and operational issues. met to ensure smooth and
mutually beneficial business
To be part of a fair and | relationship.
respectful tender and
supplier selection process. As part of the wider Honeywell
. Group, the Company’s
To b? part 9f an ongoing supplier  engagement is
supplier relationship based measured as part  of
on .mutual respect and Honeywell’s global
treating each other as | ., rement organisation.
valued business partners.
Further information can be
found on Honeywell
International’'s supplier code
of business;
www.honeywell.com/en-
us/company/integrity-and-
compliance.com.
Customers To provide the Company’'s | The Company maintains a | By understanding our

customers, it has allowed us to
clarify the Company’s vision
for future growth and ways to
continually add brand value.

Page 8




Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Strategic report

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

products or services are
addressed and resolved.

Ensuring that customer data
is kept in a secure
environment and only for the
duration and purposes the
data was collected for.

Community To manufacture and deliver | The Company maintains a | By following and implementing
and high quality products and | number of group-wide policies | the group wide sustainability
environment services in an energy | to promote sustainable and | policy, the Company has been
efficient and environmentally | environmentally friendly | able to foster the interests of
responsible manner. business and operational | the community and
practices. environment in  which it
To conduct business in a operates.
manner to minimise

negative impact on the
surrounding area and be
respectful and conscientious
of the environment.

To take into account the
interest of the local

community when
considering future
investments and business
decisions.

As aforementioned, the
Company as part of the
wider Honeywell Group
takes into consideration the
sustainability  policy  of
Honeywell International Inc.

Shareholder The Company is jointly | Group Treasury, Tax and | The Company's strategy is to

owned by Novar Limited and { Finance functions, in | pursue strategic growth to
Novar Electrical Holdings | conjunction with the senior | create long term value for its
Limited. The ultimate parent | management, make | shareholder.

is Honeywell International | recommendations to declare v

Inc. dividends, coordinate and | The receipt of this information,

evaluate the amount of | and the coordination with
dividend and impact at local | Group functions, aids the
level Board when considering
whether to declare dividends,
The Company reports to its | the amount of dividend and
shareholder on a regular | impact at local level

| basis in the form -of its
financial statements, monthly | Dividends, which are
and quarterly Board reports | categorised as a principal
and business reviews, | decision, were considered and
presentations to the Board of | however were not subject for
the Group, business plans | approval this financial period.
and strategic plans as well as
risk reporting.
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Regulator(s) To receive regular feedback | The Company’'s Directors
on any consultations. have delegated much
responsibility for engagement
To have an'open and honest | with the Regulators to the
relationship  with the | ultimate parent. '

Company where Regulation
and Guidance can be | The Company keeps the

discussed. Regulators informed of any
significant changes to the
Company.

Employee Engagement Statement:

The Company identifies its employees as its key stakeholders and recognizes their importance to the long-term
success of the Company. Throughout the year, the Directors, through their delegated authority to senior
management, HR functions and wider Honeywell Group functions, engaged with the Company's employees in
various ways to provide information on matters of concern to them as employees, to take into account their views
in making decisions likely to affect their interests, to encourage involvement in the Company'’s performance and to
achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
Company'’s performance.

The Company engages with its employees to create an environment where its people can continue to learn and
establish their careers alongside adding value to the attainment of the Company’s initiatives. The Company
promotes the use of specific lines of communication such as employee surveys, business performance updates
and presentations, among other things.

This ongoing engagement with the Company’s stakeholders aims to minimise levels of staff attrition, actively invite
employee engagement within the context of the current market, capitalise on knowledge share schemes and
promote and continue to develop a healthy work-life balance.

The table below sets out the details of how the Company engaged with its employees and how the Directors have
regard to the employees’ interests and the impact of these considerations on the decisions taken by the Board
during the reporting period. Further detail of these decisions, and in particular the Principal Decisions in relation to
the employees, are discussed in the s172 Statement on page 12:
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Strategic report

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Employees’ interests

How have the Directors engaged with

‘'employees

How the Directors have had regard to
employee interests, and the effect of
that regard

Providing information on
matters of concern to
them as employees and to
achieve an awareness of

factors  affecting the
performance of the
Company, such as

quarterly results, strategy,
sustainability, training, bi-
annual performance
related bonus scheme,
career development and
diversity and inclusion.

Being consulted on a
regular basis so that the
views of employees can
be taken into account in
the decisions made by
the Directors which are
likely to affect their
interests.

The Directors have delegated much of
the engagement to Group’s employee
engagement mechanisms, including the
Group intranet, Group social media
channel, regular team and one-to-one
updates provided by divisional leaders
and line managers.

The Group HR function, to whom the
Directors have delegated training
responsibility, ensure that training and
career development sessions to
employees are provided.

Employees are kept informed, often via
townhalls orby ad hoc updates on key
developments, changes to strategic
objectives and priorities, updates on
progress of ongoing projects, updates on
Brexit developments and its impact on
the business and workforce, updates
and announcements in respect of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

A specific initiative in the Company took
place called 'Empower’ which sought to
engage employees on how they achieve
work-life balance.

Employees also regularly receive emails
from the Group and UK CEO as part of
the Company’s wider engagement
strategy,

The Company also publishes annually
the Company’s Gender Pay Gap Report,
as well as communications around how
and what improvements the Company is
trying to progress.

The Company's employees are actively
encouraged to participate in any group
surveys. The results of the survey are
reported back to the Board for
consideration.

We strive to promote inclusivity and do
not discriminate between employees or
potential employees on grounds of race
or ethnic origin, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, age, religion or belief.

We are committed to valuing the
diversity of our people and monitor and
report internally on aspects such as
gender and age equality. The Company
and the group are strongly dedicated to
ensuring equal pay for all workforce
across the organization regardless of
gender, race or ethnic origin, disability,
gender, sexual orientation, age, religion
or belief and regularly report on both
group and legal entity level.

The results of the survey are submitted
to the Board and considered. The
outcomes and any workforce-related
issues and requests are considered,
addressed and the employees updated
on the actions to be taken.
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. Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Strategic report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Principal Decisions

Principal decisions, within the context of Section 172, are made within the context of the uitimate parent company

Honeywell International Inc.’s group strategy and in accordance with policies and procedures set by Honeywell
International Inc.

During the year there were no principal decisions, within the context of Section 172 reporting, for the company to
disclose.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:

Meola Do
NicgramBD&EQC?QaCOW
Director
30-Dec-2021
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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

Business review and future developments
A review of the business of the company and future developments is included in the strategic report on page 1.
Results and dividends

The company'’s loss for the financial year, after taxation was £8,305,000 (2019: profit of £7,593,000) which will be
deducted from reserves. The results for the financial year are shown on page 20.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2019: £nil).

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

The details of the financial risk management of the company ére included in the strategic report on page 2.
Directors of the company

The directors of the company who held office during the financial year and up to the date of signing these financial
statements were:

lan Snadden (resigned on 15 May 2020)
Neil Eric Garland (resigned on 15 May 2020)
Madeleine Orbell-Thompson

Nicola Dix (appointed on 14 May 2020)

Directors’ indemnities

Pursuant to the company's articles of association, the directors were throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2020 and are at the date of this report entitled to a qualifying indemnity provision as defined in section
234 of the Companies Act 2006.

Research and development

Research and development expenditure for the financial year related mostly to the development of a new software
and a hardware platform which will be used for all future product developments and amounted to £5,566,000 (2019:
£4,097,000). The Company does not capitalise R&D projects since the Intellectual property (IP) is not held within
the Company. However, it does receive recharges from the R&D centre based in India where the IP is held.

Employment of disabled persons

The company recognises that physically or otherwise disabled individuals are not, of necessity, prevented from
making a valuable and significant contribution to the business, and where people have the attitudes and abilities
necessary for the job, the company gives sympathetic consideration towards employing them, or retaining them in
work should the disability emerge during employment. The company’s policy is to ensure that no discrimination
either direct or indirect occurs against employees or applicants, whether in selection, promotion, access to training,
or appraisal.

Employee engagement

The company keeps employees fully informed of the company’s strategies and their impact on the performance of
the company and the group and encourages employee participation. Briefing meetings are held for each division
to give information on company matters and provide an opportunity for discussion. E-mail bulletins are circulated
regularly to all employees to ensure a common awareness of financial and economic factors that affect the
performance of the company. Furthermore, employees can acquire shares in the ultimate parent company through
the UK Share Builder Plan. Further detail on the engagement with employees undertaken during the year appears
as part of our Section 172 statement on page 10.

Stakeholder engagement

We recognise the importance of clear communication and proactive engagement with our stakeholders. Details of
engagement with stakeholders undertaken during the year appears as part of our Section 172 Statement on page
7.
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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Going concern

The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are
set out in the strategic report.

The uitimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. has indicated that it will provide financial support to the
company for at least one year from the date of signing these financial statements. While considering the ability of
the ultimate parent company to provide financial support, the directors, have reviewed the 2020 and Q3 2021
operating results and financial performance of Honeywell International Inc. as well as representations and initiatives
of Honeywell Executive Leadership. The directors have further relied on forward looking assessments provided by
Honeywell International Inc. under various possible COVID-19 scenarios, including rollout of the vaccine, and are
satisfied that the ultimate parent company is in a position to provide the necessary financial support. As part of their
consideration, the directors have acknowledged the cost control measures already taken across Honeywell
International Inc., the group’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments balance at 30 September 2021
of $12.1 billion.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources, including support from
Honeywell International Inc. to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future being a period of at least
12 months from the date of these financial statements.

Based on the circumstances described above, the financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the
entity is a going concern.

Disclosure of information to auditor

In the case of each of the persons who is a director at the time this report is approved:

e so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is
unaware; and

e each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Global GHG emissions and energy use for the period

The annual quantity of emissions of carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent resulting from the company'’s activities are:

2020 2020

Tonnes kWh

- CO2 emissions from combustion of gas 986.56 5,345,742

CO2 emissions from combustion of fuel for transport 69.07 14,391

purposes ‘

CO2 emissions from electricity purchased for own use 1,797.91 7,711,712

Emissions from business travel in rental cars or 8.84 33,731
employee -owned vehicles where company is
responsible for purchasing the fuel (Scope 3)

Total gross CO 2e based on above 2,862.38 13,105,576

Intensity ratio 0.0353

No comparative emission results have been disclosed as this is the first year of implementing the Global GHG
reporting.
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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Methodology for determining emission values

GHG Protocol: The corporate standard used in conjunction with DEFRA conversion factors was used. Actual
consumption of electricity and fuels where available were used for the calculations. Where actual emissions were
not available these are based on estimates as follows:

e Estimation of sites energy consumption was done by CBECS factors for labs and offices using the square
footage information

e Business travel calculations are based on spend data converted to litres and assumed diesel as the fuel
used

e Personal mileage calculations are based on spend data converted to km and assumed diesel as the fuel
used

Intensity ratio is calculated as Tonnes CO2e: Revenue
Steps take to increase the company’s energy efficiency

Honeywell has a commitment to making our business operations more environmentally friendly and sustainable.
Our internal efforts have improved our Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas intensity by more than 90% since
2004. And we are committed to achieving more. In 2019, Honeywell set a new five-year “10-10-10" target to reduce
global Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions by an additional 10% per dollar of sales from 2018 levels,
to deploy at least 10 renewable energy opportunities, and to achieve certification to 1ISO’s 50001 Energy
Management Standard at 10 facilities, all by 2024. Environmental responsibility is important to our long-term
growth. Being a steward of the environment ensures economic sustainability for our shareholders and employees,
and it enables continued development of products to meet the demands of an expanding global economy.

We have implemented the following actions to reduce/offset our emissions and energy consumption:

e Global energy program allowing any site to avail funding for energy reduction projects

e Implementing lighting and control systems upgrade projécts, compressed air and cooling plant upgrade
projects in the UK

e Specific program to optimize the facilities during the COVID-19 period in UK Purchasing electricity with
REC’s in many UK sites

Events since the balance sheet date
There have been no material adjusting or disclosable events since the financial year end.
Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate arrangements
have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditor in the absence of an Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
‘ Mesla. Dige
3F91CDCEICTI4CO0...

Nicola Dix
Director

30-Dec-2021
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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Directors’ responsibilities statement
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework.’

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company'’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy. at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

To assist themselves in discharging these responsibilities, the directors have engaged a number of third party
providers including accounting firms who are engaged to prepare the company’s financial statements, as well as
Honeywell International Inc.’s own finance shared service centre located in Bengaluru, Prague and Bucharest.
Honeywell operates a country controllership model under which an identified senior finance representative is
responsible for all of the UK and Ireland entities, supported by a wider finance team and under the supervision of
the Regional Finance Leader for Western Europe. The directors have ensured that adequate processes are in
place to maintain oversight and supervision over these various providers and processes and to ensure there is
clear linkage with the company’s activities.
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Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Novar ED&S Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Novar ED&S Limited (the ‘company’):

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for
the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the profit and loss account;

the statement of comprehensive income;
the balance sheet;

the statement of changes in equity; and
the related notes 1 to 31.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “"Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. '

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. '

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members:of Novar ED&S Limited

Responsibilities of the directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enquired of management, internal audit and about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that:

e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act 2006 and relevant tax legislation; and

+ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to
the company ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within
the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations in the following area, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:

¢ due to the nature of the group structure and the recharge arrangements in place, there is a risk that intragroup
recharges are not recorded in the correct accounting period: we have tested a sample of post year end invoices
and verified that the charges have been recorded in the accounting period to which the goods or provision of
services relate.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud thr?)‘ugh management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Novar ED&S Limited

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

¢ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial
statements, .

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and

¢ enquiring of management, and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

' Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

28254§CE 66

James Boy e‘&f“(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Edinburgh, United Kingdom
30-Dec-2021

DocuSigned by:
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Profit and loss account

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Government grant income
Operating (loss)/profit
Interest receivéble

Interest payable and similar charges
(Loss)/profit before taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit

(Loss)/profit for the financial year

The notes on pages 24 to 50 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes

11

12

14

2020 2019
£000s £000s
81,098 108,924
(62,147) (74,434)
18,951 34,490
(9,881) (10,280)
(15,977) (17,509)
330 -
(6,577) 6,701
4,224 5,668
(2,446) (3.613)
(4,799) 8,756
(3,506) (1,163)
(8,305) 7,593




Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Statement of comprehensive income
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes £000s £000s
(Loss)/profit for the financial year . (8,305) 7,593
Other comprehensive income:
Items that cannot be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension plan | 25 41,496 (3,941)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 14 (9,254) 670
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, 32,242 (3,271)
net of tax
23,937 4,322

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
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Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Right-of-use assets

Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Cash at bank and in hand

Assets held for sale

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities (excluding pension asset)
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities

Pension asset

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share prenﬁium account
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Total shareholders’ funds

The financial staiements on pages 20 to 50 were approved by the board of directors on

and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
Qlw(a Do
66‘?%9460...
Director
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15

16

17

18

19

20

13

21

22

24

25

26

27

28

2020 2019
£000s £000s
- 7
15,379 10,047
17,493 18,347
693 693
33,565 29,094
7,180 7,802
94,997 100,505
2,752 3,009
104,929 111,316
- 1,533
104,929 112,849
(69,341) (58,323)
35,588 54,526
69,153 83,620
(57,494) (58,380)
(38,230) (27,419)
205,969 157,640
179,398 155,461
1,101 1,101
19,800 19,800
714 714
157,783 133,846
179,398 155,461
30-Dec-2021



Statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

Called-up Shg e Other Profit and
. premium Total

share capital reserves loss account

account

£000s £000s £000s . £000s £000s
At 1 January 2019 1,101 19,800 714 129,524 151,139
Profit for the financial year - - - 7,593 7,593
Other comprehensive expense - - - (3,271) (3,271)
At 31 December 2019 1,101 19,800 714 133,846 155,461
Loss for the financial year : - - - (8,305) (8,305)
Other comprehensive income - - - 32,242 32,242
At 31 December 2020 1,101 19,800 714 157,783 179,398
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Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

1. General information

Novar ED&S Limited is a private company limited by shares which is incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and registered in England and Wales. The nature of the company’s operations and its
principal activities are set out in the strategic report on page 1. .

The immediate parent undertaking is Novar Electrical Holdings Limited., a company incorporated in United
Kingdom. The registered address of the parent is Honeywell House, Skimped Hill Lane, Bracknell Berks, RG12
1EB, England, United Kingdom. '

The financial statements contain information about the company as an individual company and do not contain
consolidated financial information as parent of a group.

The company is exempt under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare
consolidated financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the
financial statements of Honeywell International Inc., a company registered in the USA. Honeywell International Inc.
is the company’s ultimate parent company and controlling party, heading up the smaliest and largest group to
consolidate these financial statements. The registered office of the ultimate parent company is located at 300 South
Tryon Street, Charlotte, NC 28202, USA. The financial statements of Honeywell International Inc. are publicly
available and can be obtained from the Internet at www.honeywell.com.

2. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies that have been applied consistently throughout the financial year and in the preceding year
are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reporting
Requirements’ issued by the FRC. Accordingly, these financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Financia! Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. The company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement’ (disclosure of valuation
techniques and inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities);.

e the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to present comparative
information in respect of:

o paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1,

o paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,

o paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets (reconciliations between the carrying amount at
the beginning and end of the period), and

o and paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (key management compensation);

e the requirements of following paragraphs of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:

o 10(d) (statement of cash flows), )

o 10(f) (a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements and 16 (statement of
compliance with all IFRS),

o 38Ato 38D (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow statements
and additional comparative information), and

o 40A to 40D, 111 (statement of cash flows information) and 134-136 (capital management
disclosures) of IAS 1;

the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors (disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been issued but
is not yet effective);
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Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

e the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into
between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction
is wholly owned by such a member;

e the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a)
o (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
the requirements of paragraph 52 of IFRS 16 Leases; and
the requirements of paragraph 58 of IFRS 16, provided that the disclosure of details of indebtedness
required by paragraph 61(1) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately for lease liabilities
and other liabilities, and in total.

Going concemn

The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are
set out in the strategic report.

The ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. has indicated that it will provide financial support to the
company for at least one year from the date of signing these financial statements. While considering the ability of
the ultimate parent company to provide financial support, the directors, have reviewed the 2020 and Q3 2021
operating results and financial performance of Honeywell International Inc. as well as representations and initiatives
of Honeywell Executive Leadership. The directors have further relied on forward looking assessments provided by
Honeywell International Inc. under various possible COVID-19 scenarios, including rollout of the vaccine, and are
satisfied that the ultimate parent company is in a position to provide the necessary financial support. As part of their
consideration, the directors have acknowledged the cost control measures already taken across Honeywell
International Inc., the group’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments balance at 30 September 2021
of $12.1 billion.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources, including support from
Honeywell International Inc. to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future being a period of at least
12 months from the date of these financial statements.

Based on the circumstances described above, the financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the
entity is a going concern.

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover comprises revenue from sales to customers net of value added tax.

The company recognises revenue when it satisfies an identified performance obligation by transferring a promised
good to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company measures revenue at the
transaction price, excluding estimates of variable considerations. A good is considered to be transferred when the
customer obtains control. IFRS 15 states that “control of an asset refers to the ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the asset”. Control also means the ability to prevent others from
directing the use of, and receiving the benefit from, a good.

As per IFRS 15, the performance obligations are deemed to be satisfied as follows:

Type of sale Recognition
Product sales On delivery and when acceptance by the customer has occurred.

Volume rebates

The company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased
during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the
customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the company applies the most
likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts
with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected
future rebates. .
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Warranty obligations

The company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required
by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

The service-type warranties are sold either separately or bundled together with the sale of goods. Contracts for
bundled sales of goods and a service-type warranty comprise two performance obligations because the promises
to transfer the good and to provide the service-type warranty are capable of being distinct. Using the relative stand-
alone selling price method, a portion of the transaction price is allocated to the service-type warranty and
recognised as a contract liability. Revenue is recognised over the period in which the service-type warranty is
provided based on the time elapsed.

Contract balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Interest receivable

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to its net carrying amount.

Interest payable

Interest payable is recognised using the effective interest rate method. In calculating interest payable, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.

Leases — as lessee

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all leasing arrangements, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (less than
£5,000). For these leases, the company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability — initial measurement

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, excluding payments made at or
before the commencement date, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments); and
e payments of penaities for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

Lease liability — subsequent measurement

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost;
The lease liability is remeasured, with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset, whenever:

e the lease term has changed in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate; and

e alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate.
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Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:

e lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any iease incentives received,;

e any initial direct costs; and '

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The company also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Research and development

All costs associated with research and development are written off to the profit and loss account in the year of
expenditure, unless the costs meet the recognition criteria under IAS 38 to be capitalised. R&D expenditure credit
reclaimable from HM Revenue and Customs in respect of those costs is recognised when the actual claim is
submitted to revenue authorities. The amount claimed reduces the research and development costs in the profit
and loss account in the year of claim.

Foreign currency translation
The company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the entity’s functional currency by applying the spot
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are
taken to the profit and loss account. :

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Taxation

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the financial year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other financial years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, except when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are offset, only if a legally enforcement right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities, the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority and that authority permits the company
to make a single net payment.

Income tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income if it relates to items that are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income. Similarly, income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items
that are credited or charged directly to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Intangible assets
Goodwill is initially recognised at purchase costs less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

The useful life of the major assets is:
Capitalised software 5 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis. >

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are stated at historical purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method at rates calculated to write down the cost to the estimated residual value over the
estimate useful life. Cost comprises purchase costs together with any incidental expenses of acquisition. The
annual depreciation rates used for the major assets are:

Land and buildings 2-3%
Plant and equipment 5-8%
Fixtures and fittings 8%

Depreciation is not provided on construction in progress until the asset is completed.

Land is not depreciated.

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation rates and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

Investments- recognition, measurement and impairment

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment. The value of investments
is reviewed annually by the directors or more frequently if there is a triggering event and provision made where the
investment’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and
loss account. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the investment is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment losses been recognised for the investment in prior years. A reversal of impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company makes an estimate
of the asset’s recoverable amount in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. An asset's recoverable,
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses on
continuing operations are recognised in the profit and loss account in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

For assets where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment losses been recognised for the asset or cash
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
The company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exists.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at year end and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument in another entity.

Financial asset — recognition and measurement
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attribute able to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Classification of financial assets

All financial assets held by the company during the current and prior year meet the following conditions and have
been classified as those measured at amortised cost:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and .

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IFRS 9, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on all financial assets not measured at fair value.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows,
the company is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life
of the assets.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Financial liabilities - recognition and measurement
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial liabilities at amortised cost as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Currently, the company holds financial liabilities measured at amortised cost which comprises of loans and
borrowings and trade payables.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as interest payable in the profit and loss account.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, and
net realisable value. Provisions for obsolete and slow-moving stocks are made where appropriate.

The cost of raw materials, consumables and goods for resale is the purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis. The
cost of work in progress and finished goods is the cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable overheads
based on a normal level of activity.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Pensions

As described in note 25, the company participates in a defined benefit pension scheme for the benefit of certain of
its employees, the assets of which are held separately from those of the company in independently administered
funds. The rates of contribution are determined by independent professionally qualified actuaries.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit method, which attributes entittement to benefits to the current period (to determine current
service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation) and
is based on actuarial advice. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss. When a settlement (eliminating all
obligations for benefits already accrued) or a curtailment (reducing future obligations as a result of a material
reduction in the scheme membership or a reduction in future entitement) occurs, the obligation and related plan
assets are remeasured using current actuarial assumptions and the resultant gain or loss recognised in the profit
and loss account during the period in which the settlement or curtailment occurs.

Net interest is calculated by applyi\ng the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, both as determined
at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability during
‘the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. The net interest is recognised in profit or loss as interest
receivable or payable.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the net assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur.

The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds), less the fair
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair value is based on market price
information and in the case of quoted securities is the published bid price. The value of a net pension benefit asset
is restricted to the present value of any amount the company expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan
or reductions in the future contributions.

Defined contribution plans are externally funded, with the assets of the plan held separately from those of the
company in separate trustee administered funds. Contributions to such plans are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable.

Provisions

The company recognises a provision when it has present obligation, either legal or constructive, that can be reliably
measured, and it is probable that the transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle that obligation.

Provisions are based on the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the obligation.
Assets held for sale

The non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly
attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.
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The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it
is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn.
Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one
year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for
sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement of
financial position.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be received and that all
related conditions will be met, usually on submission of a valid claim for payment. Government grants in respect of
capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account and are released as income by equal annual amounts
over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets. Grants of a revenue nature are credited to income so as to
match them with the expenditure to which they relate.

Grants for specific expenses such as furlough costs are credited to income in profit and loss account in the same
period as the relevant expense.

3. Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the directors are required to
make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised
and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements
There are no judgements that have a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(i) Impairment of Investments

The investment in subsidiary undertakings is carried at cost and tested for impairment when indicators of potential
impairment exist. The assessment of impairment involves estimation in relation to the value of the unquoted
investment based on the net assets of the underlying investment and projected cash flows, wherever applicable.
At the year end, the value of the investment was £693,000 (2019: £693,000). There was no impairment charge
during the year (2019: £nil). The effect of COVID-19 on the profitability of the company’s subsidiary has been
factored into the projections used when performing the impairment assessment.

(ii) Estimates used for provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing
and amount of any outflows. Professional expert advice is taken where required through internal or external subject
matter experts.

Judgements are also required where there is a high degree of uncertainty associated with determining whether a
present obligation exists and estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that may arise.
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Warranty provision

Provisions for warranty costs are recognised when the product is sold to the customer. Initial recognition is based
on historical experiences. To calculate the provision for warranty cost, management take all returns/credit in relation
to the products for the last 12 months and considers the cost of sales for those credits for the warranty period. The
estimate of warranty costs is revised annually. The carrying amount of the warranty provision as at 31 December
2020 was £162,000 (2019: £255,000).

Severance pay provision

The severance pay provision covers a number of employees and is calculated on individual basis to take account
of variables such as length of service. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of severance pay provision
was £nil (2019: £1,720,000).

(iii) Estimates used for DB pension scheme

The cost of defined benefit pensions plans, and other post-employment medical benefits is determined using
actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the actuary considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in the
respective currency with at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of
the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having excessive
credit spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that
they do not represent high quality bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific country. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for
the respective country. Management works closely with the actuary to agree to these assumptions. The value of a
net pension benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any amount the company expects to recover by way
of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions. Further details are given in note 25.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The company estimates the expected credit loss in relation to its financial assets considering the nature of business,
past history and other mitigating factors. The company reviews this policy annually, if required. Accordingly, the
company has recognised a provision for expected credit loss of £59,000 (2019: £12,000).

In respect of other financial assets which primarily comprises of amounts owed from group undertakings, a letter
of guarantee has been provided by the ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. indicating that
support will be given in order to settle these amounts should it be necessary. Accordingly, the company has not
recognised a provision for expected credit loss.

4. New and amended standards and interpretations

The company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of Novar ED&S Limited, nor is there expected to be
any future impact to the company.

Page 33



Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

5. Turnove_r

Analysis of turnover by geographical market

United Kingdom
Rest of Europe
Middle east
North America
Malaysia

Rest of the world

Total turnover by geographical market

Analysis of turnover by category
Sale of goods

Total turnover by category

Timing of revenue recognition
Point of time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

6. Disclosures in respect of contract with customers

2020 2019
£000s . £000s
58,365 86,594
4,181 4,335
16,376 15,483
131 409
404 460
1,641 1,643
81,098 108,924
2020 2019
£000s £000s
81,008 108,924
81,098 108,924
81,098 108,924
81,098 108,924

The following table provides information about amounts recognised in the profit and loss arising from contracts

with customers:

Revenue from contracts with customers (note 5)

Impairment (losses)/reversal on receivables or contract

assets arising from contracts with customers
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The following table provides information about trade receivables, contracts assets and contract liabilities:

2020 2019

£000s £000s

Gross trade receivables 9,099 14,641
Provision for expected credit loss (59) (12)
Trade receivables (note 20) 9,040 14,629

There are no contract assets/contract liabilities at year end (2019: £nil)

7. Government grant income

During the year the company received a government grant of £330,000 (2019: £nil) under the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme (JRS). The grant is given to UK employers to cover all or part of the wages and salary costs of
employees on temporary unpaid leave (furlough) due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

8. Operating (loss)/profit

2020 2019
£000s £000s

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation and amortisation

Tangible assets — owned (note 16) 1,620 1,871
Intangible assets (note 15) 7 6
Right-of-use assets (note 17) 1,199 409
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - (30)
Impairment of tangible assets (note 16) - 702
Reorganisation and redundancy | 2,961 1,720
Research and development 5,566 4,097
Loss/(gain) on foreign exchange 560 (346)

9. Auditor’'s remuneration

Fees payable to the auditor, Deloitte LLP, amounted to £22,300 (2019: £25,000) for the audit of the financial
statements. This cost was incurred by Honeywell Control Systems Limited, a fellow UK subsidiary of Honeywell
International Inc., and it is not recharged to the company.

There are no non audit services fees payable to the auditor (2019: £nil).
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10. Employees and directors

(a). Staff costs

2020 2019

£000s £000s

Wages and salaries ' 15,204 20,341
Social security costs - 2,226 2,134
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans 1,992 2,533
" Pension costs for defined benefit plans (note 25) 1,020 726
Total staff costs 20,532 25,734

The average monthly number of employees during the financial year was made up as follows:

(including executive directors)

2020 2019

No. No.

Direct 117 195

Indirect 275 - 358

Total monthly average number of employees 392 553
(b). Directors' remuneration

2020 2019

£000s £000s

Aggregate emoluments A 795 ‘ 607

' Pension costs-defined contribution ) 66 77

Total payments tov directors 861 684

Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments 678 512
Total payments to highest paid director 678 512

During the financial year the highest paid director (2019: did not) exercised options over shares of Honeywell
International Inc., the ultimate parent company.

In 2020, one director (2019: two directors) was -remunerated by other group companies for his services to the
group as a whole.
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11. Interest receivable

2020 2019

£000s £000s

Interest receivable from group undertakings 994 1,391

Pension interest (note 25) 3,230 4,277

Total interest receivable . 4,224 5,668
12. Interest payable and similar charges

2020 _ 2019

£000s £000s

Interest payable on bank overdraft : 128 308

Interest payable on lease liability _ . 382 ' 272

Preference share dividend 1,936 3,033

Total interest payable and similar charges . 2,446 3,613

13. Assets held for sale

In the year 2019 an announcement was made for the closure of St. Asaph site by January 2020, the tangible
assets, land and buildings were sold and staff were made redundant.

In the current year all these assets were transferred to Goodfish Group Limited and the balance is nil.

The major classes of assets of St. Asaph site classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, are
as follows:

'2020 2019
£000s £000s
Tangible assets - 1,200
Inventories - 333
Total assets ’ - 1,533
14. Taxation
(a). Tax charged in the profit and loss account
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Current tax:
Adjustments in respect of prior years 136 234
Total current tax 136 234
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Deferred tax:

Effect of change in tax laws and rates 1,624 -

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,604 - 889
Adjustment in respect of prior years 142 40
Total deferred tax 3,370 929
Total tax expense in the profit and loss account 3,506 1,163

(b). Tax relating to items credited or charged to statement of comprehensive income

2020 2019
£000s £000s

Deferred tax:
Effect of change in tax laws and rates . 1,370 -
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension plans 7,884 670
Total deferred tax ‘ 9,254 670
Total tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income 9,254_ 670

(c). Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax expense in the profit and loss account for the financial year is higher than the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19% (2019: 19%). The differences are reconciled below:

2020 2019
£OOOS ) £000s
(Loss)/profit before tax (4,799) 8,756
(Loss)/profit multiplied by the effective rate of corporation tax in the (912) 1,664
UK of 19% (2019: 19%)
Effects of:
Eizzfgzizsnot deductible for tax purposes and other permanent 467 959
Income not taxable for tax purposes (428) (663)
Effect of change in tax laws and rates 1,624 -
Difference in current tax rate to deferred rate - (105)
Adjustment in respect of prior years ) 278 274
Group relief surrendered/ (not paid for) 2,477 (966)
Total tax expense reported in the profit and loss account 3,506 1,163
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(d). Factors affecting tax charge for the financial year

The Finance (No.2) Act 2015 reduced the main rate of UK corporation tax to 19%, effective from 1 April 2017. A
further reduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 17% was expected to come into effect from 1 April 2020 (as
enacted by Finance Act 2016 on 15 September 2016). However, legislation introduced in the Finance Act 2020
(enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed the reduction of the corporation tax, thereby maintaining the current rate of
19%. Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 19% (2019: 17%) which represents the future
corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included measures to support economic recovery as a
result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These included an increase to the UK's main corporation tax rate to
25%, which is due to be effective from 1 April 2023. These changes were not substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and hence have not been reflected in the measurement of deferred tax balances at the period end. The
company has assessed the impact of the change in rate on its deferred tax assets and liabilities and the |mpact
would be to increase the deferred tax liability at the balance sheet date by £12,100,000.

(e). Deferred tax

2020 2019
£000s £000s
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows:
Deferred tax asset
Differences between capital allowances and depreciation 925 1,309
Other short-term timing differences . 141 45
Total deferred tax asset ' 1,066 1,354
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax provision on pension asset (note 25) (39,134) (26,798)
Total deferred tax liability (39,134) (26,798)
Net deferred tax liability (38,068) (25,444)
Movements in deferred tax Excluding p ir;)ségg Fension Tote!
£000s £000s
At 1 January 2020 1,354 (26,798) (25,444)
Charge to the profit and loss account (288) (3,082) ' (3,370)
grceoc::;o statement of comprehensive | ) (9.254) (9.254)

At 31 December 2020 1,066 (39,134) (38,068)
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15. Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January and December 2020 -

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020

Provided during the year

At 31 December 2020

Net book value:

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Software Goodwill Total
£000s £000s £000s
886 6,318 7,204

879 6,318 7,197

7 - 7

886 6,318 7,204

7 - 7

Page 40



Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Novar ED&S Limited
Registration number: 00189291

16. Tangible assets

Land and Plant and Fixtures and Construction Total
buildings  equipment fittings in progress
£000s " £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 January 2020 8,978 20,979 2,100 1,316 33,373
Additions during the year 5,855 373 - 845 7,073
Dispogals during the year : (11) (590) (7) - (608)
Reclassification during the year 216 1,038 7 (1,261) -
At 31 December 2020 15,038 21,800 2,100 900 39,838
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 5,661 15,731 1,934 - 23,326
Provided during the year 323 1,267 30 - 1,620
Disposals during the year (7) (474) (6) - (487)
At 31 December 2020 5,977 16,524 1,958 - 24,459
Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 9,061 5,276 142 900 15,379
At 31 December 2019 3,317 5,248 166 1,316 10,047
The above figures include:
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Freehold land and buildings, at net book value 9,061 3,317

During the year the company disposed of its assets of net book value £121,000 for £121,000, resulting in no gain

or loss on disposal.
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17. Right-of-use assets

Cost

At 1 January 2020
Additions during the year
At 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Provided during the year
At 31 December 2020
Net book value:

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

18. Investments

Cost

At 1 January and at 31 December 2020
Provision for impairment

At 1 January and at 31 December 2020

Net book value

Land and buildings
£000s

18,756

345

19,101

409

1,199

1,608

17,493

18,347

2020 2019
£000s £000s

693 693

693 693

The directors believe that the book value of the investments is not more than the value of the underlying net assets.

Shares in the company's subsidiary undertakings are ordinary shares. The subsidiary undertakings are listed in

note 30.
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19. Stocks
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Raw materials 1,990 . 2,953
Work in progress 840 1,059
Finished goods ' 4350 . 3,790
Total stocks 7,180 7,802
Cost of stocks recognised as an expense during the year 37,381 42,530
Cost of stocks written down recognised as an expense in the year 533 1,224
20. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 9,040 14,629
Amounts owed by group undertakings 83,815 84,922
R&D tax recoverable 1,498 | 954
Prepayments and accrued incbme : 644 -
Total amouﬁts falling due within one year 94,997 100,505

Amounts owed by group undertakings include the following interest-bearing loans and other borrowings, all other
amounts are interest free:

2020 2019

Receivable Currency Interest terms
£000s £000s
On demand GBP UK Base rate plus 81,363 80,369

1%

All amounts owed by group undertakings are payable on demand and unsecured.
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An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses.

Trade receivables

. 2020 2019
Gross carrying  Expected Gross carrying  Expected
amount at risk credit Expected amount at risk credit Expected
of default loss rate credit loss of default  loss rate credit loss
£000s % £000s £000s "% £000s
Amounts due:
Not due 7,984 0.41 33 13,570 0.01 1
within 30 days 663 0.65 4 7 0.03 -
30 - 60 days 197 1.45 3 577 0.40 2
61 — 90 days 77 2.88 2 234 1.07 3
. 91 - 180 days 34 4.13 2 108 1.53 2
After 180 days 144 10.70 15 145 2.95 4
Total 9,099 59 14,641 12
21. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Trade creditors 16,274 16,596
Bank overdraft 11,816 -
Amounts owed to group undertakings 4,560 5,480
Taxation and social security . - 710
Accruals and deferred income 2,931 3,689
Accrued preference dividends 32,542 30,606
Lease liability (note 23) 1,177 1,170
Other creditors 41 72
Total amount owed to creditors 69,341 58,323

Accrued preférence dividends represent an annual dividend of £3,033,000 since 2005 on 7.5% cumulative
preference shares of £1 each.

All amounts owed to group undertakings are payable on demand, unsecured and non-interest bearing.
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22. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019

£000s £000s

7.5% cumulative preference shares of £1 each 40,441 40,441
Lease liability (note 23) 17,053 17,939
Total amount owed to creditors 57,494 58,380

The holders of the redeemable cumulative preference shares have the right to be paid a fixed cumulative
preference dividend at the rate of 7.5% per annum payable annually in arrears.

The company can redeem all or part of the preference shares at any time together with arrears of dividends. In the
case of winding 'up the company, the holders of the preference shares are entitled to receive the face value of the
shares together with arrears of dividends up to the date of winding up.

23. Lease liabilities

2020 2019
Land and buildings £000s £000s
Non-current (note 22) ‘ 17,053 , 17,939
Current (note 21) 1,177 1,170
Total 18,230 19,109
The non-cancellable lease payments are due
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Within 1 year 1,177 1,170
Between 1 and 5 years 4,860 4771
After 5 years ‘ 12,193 13,168 -
Total 18,230 ' 19,109

The company has entered into commercial leases on certain properties. There are three property leases: the first
one relates to the Progress Road, Eastwood, Southend-on-Sea with a remaining term at year end of 1 years; the
second one relates to the Arnold Centre, Basildon with a remaining term at year end of 34 years, and the last one
relates to Pioneer 210 North Road, Ellesmere Port with a remaining term at year end of 8 years. There are no
restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

The company did not make any adjustments to the lease liabilities during the periods presented.
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24. Provisions for liabilities

Warranty Severance Pay Deferred tax liability Total

(note 14)
£000s £000s £000s £000s
At 1 January 2020 255 1,720 25,444 27,419
' Charge to profit and loss account - - 3,370 3,370
Credit to other comprehensive income - - ' 9,254 9,254
Utilised (93) (1,720) - (1,813)
At31 December 2020 162 - 38,068 38,230

The warranty provision represents the best estimate of the costs associated with the sale of products under
warranty before the balance sheet date.

The company has constructive obligations in respect of redundancy relating principally to the restructuring of its
operations. The amount of the provision is based on the best estimate of the cost of severance pay for notified
individuals at the balance sheet date.

25. Pension commitments
Honeywell UK Pension Scheme (HUKPS)

The company is a participating employer in the Honeywell UK Pension Scheme (HUKPS) which is a funded
defined-benefit plan based on salary. The scheme was closed for future accruals of benefits with effect from 30
June 2017 and all active members at this date became deferred members. Regular employer contributions to the
plan by the company in 2021 are estimated to be £nil. Defined benefit obligations are based on a full valuation of
the schemes liabilities as at 31 March 2020, measured using the projected unit credit method and rolled forward to
the year-end date as at 31 December 2020.

2020 2019

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet .
£000s £000s
Fair value of plan assets 833,040 747,722
Present value of defined benefit obligations (627,071) (590,082)
Net assets 205,969 157,640
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Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Interest cost
Expected return on pension plan assets

Finance credit recognised

Past service cost (including curtailments)
Total administrative expenses recognised in profit and loss
Cost recognised in profit and loss

Actual return on assets

Remeasurements

Liability losses due to changes in assumptions
Liability gains due to experience during the year
Asset gains arising during the year

Gains on transfer between companies

Total actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive
income

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation
At 1 January

Transfer between companies*

Interest cost

Curtailments

Actuarial losses on liabilities - financial assumption

Actuarial loss/(gains) on liabilities - demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains on liabilities - experience
Net benefits paid out

At 31 December
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2020 2019
£000s £000s
11,204 14,557

(14,524) (18,834)
(3,230) @217
48 i

972 726
(2,210) (3,551)
87.723 85,027

2020 2019
£000s £000s
47,971 70,421

(13,027) (286)
(73,200) (66,194)
(3,240) )
(41,496) 3.941
590,082 528,917
10,551 ;
11,204 14,557
48 .
45,002 75,270
2,969 (4,849)
(13,027) (286)
(19,848) (23,527)
627,071 590,082
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Changes in fair value of scheme assets

At 1 January

Transfer between companies*
Expected return on assets

Actuarial gains on assets
Contributions by employer

Actual administration expenses paid
Net benefits paid out

At 31 December

2020 2019
£000s £000s
747,722 686,947
13,790 .
14,524 18,834
73,200 66,194
4,624 -
(972) (726)
(19,848) (23,527)
833,040 747,722

* In 2020, Honeywel! Normalair Garrett (Holdings) Limited settled a section 75 debt as per the Pensions Act 1995
and as a result is no longer a participating employer in the HUKPS. The membership in the pension scheme has

been reallocated to other participating companies.

Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan

assets

Equities (including venture cap and alternative investments)

Bonds
Property
Cash

Total

Main actuarial assumptions

Inflation (RP1)

Inflation (CPI)

Rate of general long term increases in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions

Pensions subject to limited price indexation to 5%
Pensions subject to limited price indexation to 2.5%
Other pensions and deferred pensions

Discount rate for scheme liabilities
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2020 2019
% %
28.0 32.0
59.0 13.0
12.0 3.0
1.0 52.0
100.0 100.0
2020 2019
% %
2.7 29
2.2 1.9
n/a n/a
26 2.8
2.6 2.1
2.2 1.9
1.4 2.0
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Mortality

Mortality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables that allow for future mortality improvements. These
tables assume that a member who retired in 2020 at age 65 will live on average for a further 22.2 years (2019: 22.4
years) after retirement if male or a further 24.6 years (2019: 24.4 years) if female.

Overall long-term rate of return

The company employs a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return on pension plan assets.
Historical markets are studied and assets with a higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns consistent
with widely accepted capital market principles. The overall expected rate of return on assets is then derived by
aggregating the expected rate of return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the plan at the year
end.

26. Called-up share capital

2020 2019
£000s £000s
Authorised and allotted, called up and fully paid
1,100,605 (2019: 1,100,605) ordinary shares of £1 each 1,101 1,101
27. Share premium account
- 2020 2019
£000s £000s
Balance at 1 January and 31 December
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 19,800 19,800
28. Other reserves
2020 2019
£000s £000s
Balance at 1 January and 31 December
Other reserves 714 714

29. Contingent liabilities

The company, with other Honeywell group companies in the UK, has provided a bank guarantee under a composite
accounting agreement. Under this agreement, bank interest is calculated on the net group position after setting off
positive and overdrawn cash balances. The maximum contingent liability under this agreement is the total of
overdrawn balances held by group companies, amounting to £494,085,000 (2019: £560,423,000).

Positive cash balances held by the group exceeded overdrawn balances in 2020 and 2019.
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30. Subsidiary undertaking

The company'’s subsidiary undertaking is as follows:

Name of company’ Principal activity % holding

Directly held
subsidiary:

Honeywell Electrical  Electrical devices and 91%
Devices & Systems  systems
india Ltd

31. Events after balance sheet date

Country of Registered address
incorporation

Dowlath Tower 3 & 4
Floor, Taylors Road,
Kilpauk, Chennai
Tamil Nadu-TN
600010

India

India

There have been no material adjusting or disclosable events since the financial year end.
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